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Vision & Mission
Statement

To be a leader in the markets we serve by providing
quality products to our consumers while learning from
their feedback to set even higher standards,

To be a company that continuously enhances ifs
superior lechnological skills to remain internationally
competitive in this day and age of increasing
challenges.

To be a company that oftracts and retaing competent
people by creating a culture that fosters innovation,
promotes individual growth and rewards initiative and
performance.

To be a company which optimally combines its
people, technology, management systems, and
market opportunities to achieve profitable growth
while providing fair returns fo its shareholders.

To be a company that endeavours to set the highest
standards in corporate ethics.

To be a compony that fulfills its social responsibility.







From the Most Wholesome Tomatoes

Mitchell’s Tomaio Paste is made from 100% pure tomatoes by removing

skin & seeds in order to make it more healthy for everyday consumption. it

helps to enhance the taste & color of every dish. Our delicious ketchup and

sauces are made from handpicked, farm fresh ripe tomatoes. Richer than

any ofher ketchup; Mitchell's tomafo ketchup has come forward with

Pakistan since 1953 guarantying healthy farm fresh goodness to its people.
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Notice is hereby given that the 82" Annual General Meeting of Mitcheil’s Fruit Forms Limited will be
held on Januory 31, 2015 on Saturday ot 11:00 a.m. of the Reaistered OHice of the Company at
40-A, Zotar Ali Road, Gulberg- V, Lahore to trunsact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of last General Meeting held on Januory 31, 2014,

. ._;__}f,+;—11:_’mw1'___-‘_

[ 2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended
' September 30, 2014 togather with the Directors’” and Auditors” reports thereon.
.J i 3. To approve payment of cash dividend @ 50% as recommended by the Board of Directors.
i 4. To appoint auditors for the year ending September 30, 2015 and fo fix their remuneration as
suggested by the oudit commitiee to the Board of Directors. The retiring auditors namely Messers
; A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chorlered Accountants, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appoiniment.

OTHER BUSINESS
H 1. To transaci any other business which may be pluced before the meeting with the permission of the
3 chair.
B BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
; Lahore, Alif Fayyoz
! _ January 09, 2015 Company Secretary
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. NOTES

The individual Members who have not yet
submitted  photocopy  of  their  valid
Computerized National  Identity Card
{CNIC) 1o the Company / Share Registrar,

_are once again reminded to send the same

at the earliest directly to Company’s Share
Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private} Limited,
Wings Arcade , 1-K {Commercial} , Model
Town , Lahore. The Corporate Entities are
requested o provide their National Tax
Number (NTNJ. Please give Folic Number
with the copy of CNIC / NTN details.
Reference is also made to the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP} Nofifications SRO 779 () dated
August 18, 2011, and SRO B31 {1} 2012
dated July 05, 2012, which mandates tha
the dividend warrants should bear CNIC
number of the registered member or the
authorized person, except in cose of
minor(s) and corporate members.

The share fransfer book of the Company
will remain closed from January 23, 2015
to January 31, 2015 (both days inclusive)
for entitlement of final cash dividend for the
year ended September 30, 2014. Transfers
received in order {including deposit
requests under CDS) ot our Registrar’s
office Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings
Arcade, 1-K {Commercial) Modal Town,
tahore up to 01:00 p.m. on January 22,
2015 will be considered in time.

A member eligible to attend and vote at this
meeting may appoint another member as
his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of
him/her. Proxies, in order 1o be effective,
must be received by the Company at the
Registered Office not later than 48 hours
before the time meeting is scheduled for.
Duly completed instrument of proxy, and
the other authority under which it is signed,
ar a notarially centified copy thereof, must
be lodged with the Company Secretary at
the Company’s Registered Office {40-A,
Zatar Ali Road, Gulberg V, Lahore) ot least
48 hours before the time of the meeting.
Shareholders are requested to immediately
notify the change in their address, if any.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow
the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

A.

i

For Aftending the Meeting:

In case of individuals, the account holder or
sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and
their registration details are uploaded as
per the Regulations, shall authenticate his /
her identity by showing his / her original
Computerised  National  Identity Card
(CNIC) or origina! passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be
produced (unless it haos been provided
earlier) af the time of the meeting.

For Appointing Proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder or
sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account and
thetr registration details are upleaded as
per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
form accordingly.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shali be mentioned on the
form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of
the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his/her original
CNIC or original passport af the time of
meeling.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution / power of aftorney
with specimen signature of the person
nominated to represent and vote on behalf
of the corporate entity, shall be submitted
along with proxy form to the Company.

Funual Cepors 2014
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Directors’ Report

The vear ended September 30, 2014 was marked by several macro-economic hindrances
including slow economic growth, continuing energy crises, political uncertointies ond lesser
availability of credit in the general trade thot shifted purchasing preferences more towards
necessities.

OQverall grocery sales registered double digit growth in several product categories however
Confectionery sales suffered mainly due to our decision during the year fo discontinue the
very low priced items Ihat adversely offecied volumes sold in that category.

Gross profit at Rs. 521 million against Rs 537 million last year, shows that growth in other
categories with higher operoting margins compensated for much of the decline in low
priced Confectionery items.

Profit from operations ot Rs.158 million against Rs. 204 million lasl year was affected by
the genera! inflationary increase in fixed cost. Increase of financial cost and depreciation
on account of new pulping plant and boiler resulted in profit before tox of Rs. 119 million
compared to Rs. 180 million last year.

After tax profit of Rs. 107 million against Rs. 132 million of last year was helped by lower
taxation impoct.
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NEW INVESTMENTS
During the year the Company's two important

- investments in the Fruit Pulping Line and Coal
fired Boiler were completed and successtully

storfed. Thus Tomatoes, Mangoes and Apples
that are used by the Company in making ifs
products were processed on ihis most modern,
hygienic and Food safe plant with higher
efficiency and lower energy consumption. Some

- of the Fruit Pulps manufactured are already

being shipped to export markets.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Whereas on the job training continued in all our
functional disciplines for continuous
improvement in our Operations, several of our
technical stafl were trained in the operation of
new fechnalogies infroduced al our plant both

locally by foreign trainers as well as abroad.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The operations of our Effluent Treatment Plant
were optimized during the year to ensure that our

Net Sales - .

OO0 .

Rupees I thausands.
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factory effluents will remain within the limils
allowed by the law.

Business ethics are an integral part of our
policies and procedures. We have  strict
measures in place to avoid any corruption.

While continuing with our eflorfs  towards

- Distribution of Revenue

B R Maulerial Consaimned

W LAanalacruing overheads

B Ojygribution and Markeling eapen sy
W pinanslianve Capenses

| chers

W Fanance roal
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BEoht afies dus

promotion of high quality education during the
year we have confributed Rs. 1 million fo
Anjuman e Khuddam e Rasullullah (AKRA) and
Rs. 0.10 rmillion to Pak Turk International Cag
Foundation.

Donations were also given to Prime Minister’s
Baluchistan Earthquake Relief Fund.

The company contributed Rs.261 million | 13%
of net sales) to the National Exchequer on
accounl of various government levies including
customs duty, sales tax and income tax.

Furthermore foreign exchange of Rs. 235 million
was generated through our exports.

FUTURE OQUTLOOK

The Company will confinue fo focus on providing
high quality producis fo consumers that have
been processed from fresh farm produce. Our
products will be designed 1o improve the quality
of life of consumers both in terms of convenience
and pleasure.

We will continue to enhance our mutually

beneficial  relationships  with  the  farming
communities surrounding  our factory  thus

improving their economic wellbeing.

ﬁmm/@mt 2014
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EMOLUMENTS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
During " the year the Board approved 25%

increase in emoluments of Chisf Executive

Officer.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING
FRAMEWORK
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The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the company, present fairly
its state of afairs, the results of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account of The company
have been mainiained.

Appropricle accounting policies have been

consistently applied in  preparation of

financial  statements and  accounting
estimotes are based on reasonable and

prudent judgment,

International Financial Reporting Standards,
as opplicable in  Pakistan, have been

followed in preparation of financial

stalements.

The system of internal control is scund in
design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

* There are no significant doubts upon the
company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

* A statement regarding key financial data for
the last six years is annexed to this reporl,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year four meetings of the Board of
Directors were held. Attendance by each Director
was as follows:-

Name of Director Aftendance
S.M.Mohsin 3
Mujeeb Rashid
Sitwat Mohsin
Moaz Mohiuddin
Jumal Nasim
tMehdi Mohsin

Faisal Imam

— RO LD W s s

Umme Kulsum Imam

Leave of absence was granted fo directors who
could not attend the board meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
During the year four meefings of the audit
commitiee were held. Atendance by each

Director was as follows:-

Earnings Per Share

== Rupet pir Share
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Gross Profit, Profit before and After Tax
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Name of Director Attendance
Moaz Mohiuddin 3
S.M.Mohsin 3
Faisal Imam 2

Leave of absence was gronted to directors who
could not attend the audit committee meetings.

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year one meeting of the HR and
Remuneration committee was held. Attendance
by each Direcior was os follows: -

Name of Director Attendance
Mrs.Sitwat Mohsin ]
Mujeeb Rashid )
Umme Kulsum Imam 0

Leave of absence was granted io director who
could not oftend the HR and Remuneration
committee meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The statement of compliance with the best
practices of Code of Corporate Governance is
annexed.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The information under this head is annexed.

RELATED PARTIES

The tfransactions between the related parties
were made af arm’s length prices, determined in
accordance with the comparable uncontrolled
prices melhod.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
under report is Rs. 13.65 as compared to the last
year figure of Rs. 14.81.

DIVIDEND
The Board proposed cash dividend of Rupees 5
per share for the year under review.

AUDITORS

M/s AF. Ferguson & Company, Chartered
Accountants, Lahore, retire, and being eligible
have offered themselves for re-appointment. The
Audit Committee has also recommended their
re-appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The board of directors would like to express their
gratitude to all employees tor their strong
contribution in successfully overcoming adverse
circumstances faced by the company during the

year.
For and on behalf of
The Board of Directors

Lahore, Mujeeb Rashid

January 05, 2015 Chief Executive Officer
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From the Farm, into the Bottle

A real fruit refreshment that gives you the swing no other fruit drink can.
Mitchell’s squashes have been a source of energy and nourishment for

decades.
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Vertical Analysis of Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position

2014 2013

Balance Sheet Rs. In '000 % Rs. In ‘000 %
Non-curient Assets 698,362 49.83 404 567 43.72
Current Assels 703,215 50.17 520,756 5628
Total Assefs 1,401,577 10000 925323 100.00
Equily 578913 41.30 519,920 56.19
Non-current Ligbilities 306,366 21.86 118,420 12.80
Current Liabilities 516,298 36.84 286,983 31.0
Total equity and Liabiliies 1,401,577 10000 925,323 100.00
Profit and Loss Account
Net Sales 1,945,126 100.00 2,084,262 100.00
Cost of Sales (10423.777)  (7320)  (1,546,796) (74.21)
Gross Profi 521,349 2680 537,466 2579
Selling ond Distribution expenses (95,153) (4.89) {82,852) (3.98)
Administrative expenses {275,836) (14.18} (248,432} {}1.92)

150,360 773 206,182 9.89
Other operating expense {9,398} (0.48) (14,221) {0.68)
Other operating income 17,105 0.88 12,534 0.60

158,067 8.13 204,495 9.81
Financial expenses (38,591} (1.98) {17,558) (0.84)
Profit before tox 119,476 614 186,937 8.97
Taxation {12,012) {0.62 (54,533} (2.62)
Profit for the year 107,464 132,404 635

5.52

T




2012 2017 2010 2009
- Rs 1n ‘000 % Rs. In '000 % Rs. In ‘000 % Rs. In ‘000 %

' 375,503 46.13 332,169 43.51 312,945 47.68 329,522 4527
i 438,583 53.87 431,253 56.49 343,442 52.32 398,386 54.73

814086 10000 763421 10000 656387  100.00 727,908 100.00

429,183 5272 359,495 4709 306230 4665 269,842  37.07
96,395 1184 79710 1044 75820 1155 50479 693

288,508 3544 324216 4247 274337 4180 407,587 5599

814086 10000 763421 10000 656387 10000 727,908 100.00

1,884,503 10000 1,794248 10000 1376861  100.00 1255064 100.00
(421736)  (/544) (400132 (7803) (1073514 (797 [1,020067) (8128
462768 2456 394117 2197 303348 2203 234997 1872

! (84.568) (449)  (66,739) (3.72) (60,991}  (443)  (49.421)  (3.94)
L (06796)  (1097)  (183.404)  (1027) (135993  (9.88) (124570)  (9.93)
i 171404 910 143,974 802 106,364 7.73 61006  4.86
(12,104) (0.64) 8,374) (0.47) (7.057)  (0.51) (1,948)  (0.16)
16,024 0.85 16,907 061 7'513 0.55 127963 1.03

175,324 930 146,507 8.17 4 000 72021 574
(22.964) 122) (38,360) 2.14)  (37,613)  (273)  (53487)  (4.26)
152,359 808 108,146 6.03 69 208 5.03 18534 .48
(44.009). 034)  (34721) (.94 (227400 (1.65) (4482)  (0.36)

108, 30 575 73,475 409 46,468 337 14052 112
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Horizontal Analysis of Financial S’fo’remen’rsE

Statement of Financial Position

2014 2013 2012 2011 :
Balonce Sheet Rs. In '00C Rs. In ‘000 Rs. In '000 Rs. In ‘000
Non-current Assets 698,362 404,567 375,503 332,169 E
Current Assefs 703,215 520,756 438,583 431,253 i;
Total Assets _]_,__{1_0] SH77 925,323 814,086 763,421 t '
Equity 578,913 519,920 429,183 359,495
Non-current Liabilities 306,366 118,420 96,395 79,710 t
Current Liabilities 516,298 286,983 288,508 324,216
Total equity ond Liabiliies 1,401,577 925323 814,086 763,421 :
Profit and Loss Account
g
Net Sales 1,945,126 2,084,262 1,884,503 1,794,248
Cost of Sales (1,423,777) (1,546,796} (1,421,736) (1,400,132) |
Gross Profit 521,349 537,466 442,768 394,117
Administrative expenses : (95,153} (82,852) (84,568) (66,739} ;.
Selling and Distribution expenses {275,836} (248,432) (206,796} (183,404)
150,360 206,182 171,404 143,974
Other operating expenses (9,398) (14,221) (12,104) {8,374) I.
Other operating income 17,105 12,534 16,024 10,207
158,067 204,495 175,324 146,507 :
Financial expenses (38,591) {17,558} (22,964) (38,360) i
Profit before fox 119,476 186,937 152,359 108,146
Taxation (12.012)  (54.533)  (44.009) (34.,721) ;
Profil for the year 107464 132404 108,350 73425
Summary of Cash Flows L
I
Net cash flows from operafing activities (21,763} 171,462 120,891 85,407
Net cash flows from investing activities {329,398) (64,648) (73,851) (47,951} :
Net cash flows from financing odtivities 112,804 (37,483) {34,457) {20,183)

- - e 8
69,331 12,582 17,273 .

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  {238,357)
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2010 2009 % increase/ (decrease) over preceding year
Rs.In'000  Rs.In000 2014 2012 2011 2010 2009
312,945 329,522 0.73 0.13 006 (005  (0.00)
343442 398,386 0.35 0.02 026 014 002
656,387 727,908 0.51 007 016 (010) 001
306,230 269,842 011 0.19 0.17 013 003

75,820 50,479 1.59 0.21 0.05 050 (0]
274337 407,587 0.80 ©11) 018 {33 001
656,387 727,908 0.51 007 016  (010) 001

1,376,861 1,255,064 0.07) 0.05 0.30 010 02
(1,073,514)  (1.020,067)  (0.08) 0.02 0.30 005 020
303348 234,997 0.03) 017 030 029 024

60,991) (49,421} 015 027 009 023 02
(135993 (124570) 011 013 0.35 009 015
106,364 61,006 0.27) 0.19 0.35 0.74 049

(7,057) (1,948 (034 0.45 0.19 262 027

7.513 12,963 0.36 0.47 045  (042) 1.2
106,820 72,021 0.23) 0.20 0.37 048 059
(37,613 (53,487) 1.20 0.40) 002  (030) 065

69,208 18,534 0.36) 041 0.56 273 041
(22,740) (4,482)  (0.78) 027 0.53 407 (0.06)
46468 14052 (0.19) 048 058 231 069
156,022 36,674 (1.13) 042 (045 325 (172
10,042 (6466 410 0.54 378 (062 {0.68)
10014 (26861} (401 0.71 102 {063 008
135,966 (16,653) (4.44) (0.27) 087)  (9.14  (0.90)
%&maﬁﬁtﬂaa&f 204




Value Addition
and its Distribution

2014 2013
Wealth Generated Rs. In '000 % Rs. In '000 %
Net slaes 1,945,126 992.13 2,084,262 99.40
Other operating income 17,105 0.87 12,534 0.60

1962231 100.00 2,096,796  100.00

Distribution of Wealth

Cost of sales and services (excluding

employees remuneration and other duties) 1,279,561 65.21 1,418,636 67.66
Selling, distribulion and administration

expenses (excluding employees

remuneration and other duties) 252,513 12.87 234,646 11.19
Employees remuneration 262,692 13.39 224,798 10.72
Finance cost including exchange loss 38,591 1.97 17,558 0.84
Govearnment taxes and levies 19,845 1.01 67,754 323
{Income 1ax, WPPF and WWF) - -
Dividend to shareholders 39,375 2.01 47,250 2.25
Relained for future growth 68,090 3.47 85,154 4.06
Charity and donation 1,564 0.08 1,000 0.05
; 1,962,231 100 2,096,796 100

\
d B & Costof sales B Cost of sales
g h {excluding employees {excluding employees
rl remuneration} remuneration}
j 3 ‘ ® Selling, distribution and B Selling, distribution and
: '-h administration expenses administration expenses
L [excluding employees {excluding employees
!.I. ramungration} remuneration)
o B Ernployess remuneration M Employees remuneration
a7 B Finance cost including
. mr . .
Finance cost including exchange lass
exchange loss
; B Government taxas and
¥ Governrent taxes and fevies levi
evies
B (Imcorme tas, WPPF and ™ {Income tax, WPPF and
WWE) WWF)
% Dividend to sharehalders il Dlvidend to sharehalders
: % Retained for future growth ™ Retained for future growth
; . Charity ard donation Charity and donation
1
3 .
R
1
0!
4
i '
P
;"\_ .I
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Stakeholder Information

Financial Ratios

nit 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Rate of return
Refurn on assefs % 767 1431 1331 962 708 193
-Return on squity % 18.56 25.47 2525 2042 1517 52}
Return on copital employed % 17.86 32.04 33.36 33.36 0.00 22.48
Interest cover Times 4.10 11.65 7.63 3.82 0.00 1.35
Gross profit margin % 24.80 2579 2456 21.97 2203 18.72
Net profit to sales % 5.52 6.35 575 4.09 3.37 1.12
EBITDA Rs 208,146 242030 210,578 177,648 29548 102,231
EBITDA margin to sales % 10.70 11.61 1137 9.90 215 8.15
Liquidity -
Current ratio 1.36 1.8) 1.52 1.33 E25 098
Quick ratio 0.58 0.67 33 037 041 034
_.Fihunciqlé_Geuring L ) _
Debt-Equity ratic Times 1.42 0.78 .90 1.12 1.14 1.70
Debt 1o assets % 5870 4381 4726 5291 5335 6293
. Capital Efficiency o

Debior turnover/No. of days in receivobles  Days 18 10 12 13 11 17
inventory turnaver/ No. ol days in inventory  Days 104 77 88 81 79 93
_Creditor turnover/ No.of days in payables Days 43 44 38 44 35 31
Operating cycle Oays 79 43 62 5] 54 79
-Fixed ossets turnover ralio Times 2.84 5.30 536 5.81 4.55 3.97
Total assets turnover Times 1.39 225 2.31 2.35 210 1.72

Shareholder Information

Earnings per :shar'e {Rupees)

3-2014

1012-2013

1041-2012

o
—-——

N

o

2043-2014

2012-2013

0113002

Year Closlng Stock Price p wsapumber ups

FUTKRGE

2012:3013

209t 2012
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Break-up value of Shares {Rupees)

0132014

012-2013

£0a- 2613
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at September 30, 2014
No of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held r
310 ] 100 11,648 ;
330 101 500 84,368
69 501 1,000 53,464
128 1,001 5,000 224,015
9 5,001 10,000 52,680 g
4 10,001 15,000 47,762
4 15,001 20,000 68,178
2 25,001 30,000 54,325
] 30,001 35,000 32,531
2 35,001 40,000 73,004 L
1 60,001 65,000 64,248
] 65,001 70,000 65,275
] 75,001 80,000 76,116
1 80,001 85,000 80,050 i
1 85,001 90,000 86,983
2 125,001 130,000 252,675
] 165,001 170,000 169,581
I 170,001 175,000 171,320
1 290,001 295,000 292,738
1 420,001 425,000 424,763
1 705,001 710,000 708,000
1 790,001 795,000 791,216 E
1 1,010,001 1,015,000 1,010,608
1 1,265,001 1,270,000 1,269,626 ¢
1 1,705,001 1,710,000 1,709,826 :
875 7,875,000 "5




i'Cd‘reg'ories of shareholders Share held Percentage
‘i Direciors, Chief Executive Officers, 4,548,772 57.7622%
+ and their spouse and minor children
' ;EA.ssociated Companies, - 0.0000%
1. ;undertakings and related
ti 5p’0rﬂes,
NIT and ICP - 0.0000%
Banks Development 17,429 0.2213%
Financial institutions, Non
" Banking Financial Institutions.
Insurance Companies 292,738 3.7173%
1 Meadarabas and Mutual 797,641 10.1288%
E Funds
Shareholders holding 10% 5,211,976 66.1838%
or more
Generat Public
a. Local 2,108,648 26.7765%
b. Foreign
Others {to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies 43,269 0.5494%
Pension Funds 64,248 0.8158%
Others 2,255 0.02886%

Frnual Repont 2004
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Categories of Shareholders as required under C.C.G.

As at September 30, 2014

SR.NO.  NAME Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties {Name Wise Detail): -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

] CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND {CBC) 6,250 0.0794%
2 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST {CDC) 791,216 10.0472%
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 5.M MOHSIN 1,709,824 21.7121%
2 MEMDI MOHSIN 1,016,545 12.9085%
3 FAISAL IMAM 125,325 1.5914%
4 UMME KULSUM IMAM 1,125 0.0143%
5 MOAZ MOHIUDDIN 781 0.0099%
) JAMAL NASIM {NIT NOMINEE) - --
7 MUJEEB RASHID {CDC) 781 0.0099%
8 SITWAT MOHSIN 1,694,389 21.5161%
Executives: 450 0.0057%
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 374,590 4.7567%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Tokaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest:
S. No. Name Share Held  Percentage

1 S.M MOHSIN 1,709,826 21.7121%
2 SITWAT MOHSIN 1,694,389 21.5161%
3 MEHDI MOHSIN 1,016,545 12.9085%
4 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT {UNIT) TRUST {CDC) 791,216 10.0472%
5 AMINA WADALAWALA 708,000 8.9905%
All trades in the shares of the company, carried out by its Directors:

SNo  NAME Sale Purchase Bonus

] S.M MOHSIN 341,965
2 MOHAMMAD MEHDI MOHSIN 203,308
3 FAISAL IMAM 25,065
4 UMME KULSUM IMAM 7225
) MOAZ MOHIUDDIN 156
6 MUJEEB RASHID (CDC) 156
7 SITWAT MOHSIN 338,877

e Tonlad gt o
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Statement ¢ of Compliance
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The Board has developed a vision & mission
statement, overall corporate strotegy and
significant  policies of the Company. A
complete record of particutars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been
mainfained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly
exercised and decisions on  material
transactions,  including  appointment  and
determination of remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment of the CEO, other
exacutive and non-executive directars, have
been taken by the Board.

The meelings of the Board were presided over
by the Chairman and in his obsence, by
director elected by the Board for this purpose
and the Boord met at least once in every
quarter. Written nofices of the Board
meetings, along with agenda and working
papers were circuloted at least seven days
before the meeting. The minufes of the
meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

All direciors of the Board are fully conversant
with their dulies and responsibilities as
directors of corporate bodies.

No new appointment of Chiet Financial
Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
internal Audit were made during the year.
The Directors' report for this year has been
prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the CCG ond fully describes the salient
matters required o be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were
duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer before approval of the
Board.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
executives do not hold any interest in the
shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with aofl the
corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the CCG.

The Board has formed on audit committee.
The committee consists of three members of
whom oll are non-executive directors and the
chairman of the committee is an independent
direclor.

16 The meetings of the audit committee were held
at least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Compony as
required by the CCG. The terms of reference
of the committee have been formed and
advised to the committee for compliance.

17 The Board has formed an HR and
Remuneration Committee. It comprises of
three members, of whom two are
non-executive directors and the Chairman of
the commiliee is a non-executive director.

18 The Board has set-up an effective internal
audit function, members of which are suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and
are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

19 The statutory auditors of the Company have
confirmed that they hove been given «
safisfactory rating under the Quality Control
Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of
the partners of the firm, their spouses and
minor children do not hold shares of the
Company and that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with  International
Federation of Accountants {IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20 The statutory auditors or the persons
associated  with  them have not  been
appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the listing regulations and
the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

721 The ‘closed period’, prior to  the
announcement of interim / final results and
business decisions which may materially affect
the market price of company’s securities, was
determined ond intimated 1o directors,
employees and stock exchanges.

22 Material/price sensitive information has been
disseminated among all market participants al
once through stock exchanges.

23 We confirm that afl other material principles

T

ot o e I

enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

Lahore, Mujeeb Rashid
January 05, 2015 Chief Executive Officer
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Review Report to the Members

On Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of
Code of Corporate Governance

We .have reviewed the Statement of
Compliance with the best practices contained
in the Code of Corporate Governance
prepared by the Board of Directors of
Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited {“the Company”)
to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 35 of
the Karachi, Lohore and lIslamabad Stock
Exchanges, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code
of Corporate Governance is that of the Board
of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, to the extent where
such compliance can be objectively vernified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with
the provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance and report if it does not. A review
is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company
personnel and review of various documents

prepared by the Company to comply with the
Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we
are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal  conirol  systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We have not carried
out any special review of the internal control
system to enable us to express an opinion as fo
whether the Board's statement on internal
control covers all conirols and the effectiveness
ot such internal controls.

Further, Sub-Regulation {x) of Listing Regulation
35 notified by the Karachi, tohore and
[slamabad  Stock  Exchanges requires the
Company to place before the Board of
Directors for their consideration and approval
related  party  fransactions  distinguishing
between fransactions carried out on terms

equivalent fo those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions and fransactions which are not
executed at arm’s length price, recording
proper jusfilication for using such alternate
pricing mechanism.  Further, all  such
transactions are also required to be separately
placed before the Audit Committee. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of
requirement to the extent of approval of
reloled party transactions by the Board of
Directors and placement of such transactions
before the Audit Committee.

We have not carried out any procedures 1o
determine  whether the related  party
transactions were undertaken at arm’s length
price or not.

Based on our review, nothing hos come o our
attention which causes us to believe that the
Statemnent  of  Compliance  does  not
oppropriately  reflect  the  Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the
best praciices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance as applicable fo the
Company for the year ended September 30,
2014.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Engagement Pariner: Amer Raza Mir

Lahore,

January 05, 2015
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From the Qidest Chocolate Makers to You

Give in to your sweet cravings and gratify your senses with Mitchell’s
chocolates. Whether it’s Pakistan’s favorite jubilee chocolate or the

seductive sweetness of desire, Mitchell’s has been making your life sweet for

generations.
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From the Farm, Into the Jar

Made with the goodness of real farm-fresh fruits, Mitchell’s jam, iellies and
marmalade are full of nutrition and nourishment. So give your day a healthy
start with Mitchell’s range of preserves.
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From the First Bite to the Last; Sugary Delight

What could be more joyous than « treat of crunchy, juicy candies that melt

in your mouth or soft, milky toffees making every child and adult alike, smile

with pleasure. Mitchell’s sweets provide the best sugar rush.
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet
of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited {“the
Company”} as at September 30, 2014 and
the related profit and loss account, statement
of comprehensive income, cash flow
statemen! and statement of changes in equity
logether with the notes forming part thereof,
for the year then ended and we siate that we
have obtained all the information and
explonations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our avdit.

It is the responsibility of the Compony’s
management to establish and maintain o
system of internal control, and prepare ond
present the above said statements in
conformity with the approved accounting
standards and the requirements of the
Companies  Ordinance, 1984, Qur
responsibility is to express an apinion on these
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards as cpplicable in
Pakistan. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the
above said statements are free of any material
misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overcall presentation of the
above said statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, we report
that:

fa) in our opinion, proper books of account

have been kept by the Company as required
by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

{b)in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss

account together with the notes thereon

(i)

(iii)

(c)

have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in
agreement with the books of account and
are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently applied, except for the
change in accounting policy referred to in
nate 4.2.1, with which we concur;

the expenditure incurred during the year
was for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

the business conducted, investments made
and the expenditure incurred during the year
were in accordance with the objects of the
Company;

in our opinion and to the best of our
information and  according 1o the
explanations given to us, the balance sheel,
profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement
and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof conform
with approved accounting sfandards os
applicable in  Pakistan, ond, give the

information required by the Companies

Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the company’s affairs os
at September 30, 2014 and of the profit,
total comprehensive income, its cash flows

and changes in equity for the yeor then
ended; and

in our opinion zakat deductible at source
under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinonce, 1980
XVl of 1980}, was deducted by the
company and deposited in the Central
Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of
that Ordinance.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Amer Raza Mir

Lohore,
January 05, 2015
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Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2014

Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital

20,000,000 {2013: 20,000,000 and
2017: 10,000,000) ordinary shares
of Re. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up copital 5
7,875,000 (2013: 6,300,000 and 2012:
5,040,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Reserves &
Unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred lighilities 7
Long term finance 3
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current perion of long term finance

Short 1erm running finances-secured Q
Creditors, accrued and other iabilities 10

Accrued finance cost on short term
running finonces

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 1

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2014 2013 2012
Rupees Rupees Rupees
(Resiated) (Restated)

200,000,000 200,000,000 100,000,000
78,750,000 43,000,000 50,410,000
9,635,878 9,635,878 9,635,878
490,527,386 447,284,403 369,146,978
578,913,264 519,920,281 429,182,856
157,033,057 118,420,311 26,395,108
149,333,333 - -
306,366,390 118,420,311 26,395,108
10,666,667 - .
331,973,482 97,102,844 140,987,776
164,653,092 188,394,095 146,322,898
. 9,004,225 1,485,143 1,197,065
516,297,466 286,982,082 288,507,739
1 $25,322,674 814,085,703

,401,577,120




" ASSETS
* NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipmenl
Intangible assets

Biological assets

Long ferm receivables

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and
-other receivables

Cash and bank balances

S. M. Mohsin

Chairman

Note

12
13

15
186
17

18
i9

2014 2013 2012
Rupees Rupees Rupees
{Restated) {Restated)

684,798,311 393,166,181 364,711,648
2,247,136 1,077,596 1,285,370
2,341,334 2,573,000 9,505,667
1,974,780 750,000 -
698,361,561 404 566,777 375,502,685
19,457,038 15,026,848 12,491,433
405,756,555 327,371,490 342,532,608
96,601,581 56,548,807 59,816,430
147,084,354 84,008,075 11,387,684
34,314,031 37,800,677 12,354,863
703,215,559 520,755,897 438,583,018
1,401,577,120 925,322,674 814,085,703

Mujeeb Rashid
Chief Executive Officer
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrotion expenses

Distribution and markefing expenses
Other expenses

Other income

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

Note

20
21

27

23

24

25

26

27

33

2014
Rupees

1,945,126,430
(1,423,776,984)

2013
Rupees
(Restated)

2,084,261,537
(1,546,795,615)

521,349,446

(95,153,037)

[275,836,084)

537,465,922
(82,852,434)

(248,431,685}

(9,397,863) (14,221,178}

17,104,796 12,534,263
158,067,258 204,494,888
(38,590,614} (17,557,660)
119,476,644 186,937,228
(12,012,022) (54,532,742)
107,464,622 132,404,486

13.65

146.81

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S. M. Mohsin
Chairman

Mujeeb Rashid

Chief Executive Officer
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V01,464,622 132,404 486

p i es that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss

(1,221,639} (3,867,061}

106,242,983 128,537,425

“hilrexed notes 1 to 37 form an infegral part of these financial statements.

S. M. Mohsin Mujeeb Rashid
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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s Cash Flow Statement
| For the year ended September 30, 2014

2014 2013
Note Rupees Rupees
.”'ﬁ“ Cash flows from operating activities
. Cash generated from operations 31 75,683,606 329,008,425
Finance cost paid (31,071,532 {17,269,5872)
Net income lax paid (60,878,383) (133,921,266)
k Retirement benefits paid {5,496,243) (6,356,075)
Net cash (used in}/generated from operating activities (21,762,552 171,461,502
Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed capital expenditure (337,548,934) (68,196,51@
Purchase of intangible assets (1,606,150} (58,000)
Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 2,592,326 2,824,222
Net increase in long term security deposits {1,224,780) (750,000)
Purchase of biological assets (1,236,440} -
Proceeds from sale of biological assets 2,625,700 1,532,200
i ?g-- o Net cash used in investing aclivities {329,398,278) (64,648,091)
Cash flows from financing activities
o Dividend paid (47,196,454)| | (37,482,665}
: : Long term loans obtained 160,000,000 -
Net cash generated from/{used in) finanecing activities 112,803,546 {37,482,665)
: Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {238,357,284) 69,330,746
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (69,302,167) (128,632,913}
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the year 32 (297,659,451) (59,302,167
The annexed noles 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

3 H " 5. M. Mchsin Mujeeb Rashid
} Chairman Chief Executive Officer




Statement ot Changes in Equity

Balance-us at September 30, 2012

- Effect of retrospective change in accounting
policy -net of tax {Note 4.2.1)

Balance as at September 30,
2012 - restoled

Trenster 1o reserve for issuonce of
bonus shares

Issuance of bonus shares

Final dividend for the year ended
September 30, 2012 at Rs. 7.5 per share

Total comprehensive incame
for the year

Balance as at Sepiember 30,
2013 - restated

Transfer to reserve for issuance of
bonus shares

lssuance of honus shores

Final dividend for the year ended
Septernber 30, 2013 at Rs. 7.5 per share

Total comprehensive income for the year

Bolance as af September 30, 2014

For the year ended September 30, 2014

Share Share General Accumulated
capital premium reserve profit Total
--------------------------------------- Rupees----—-mcs oo
50,400,000 9,335,878 300,000 372,529,248 432,565,126
{3,382,270) (3,382,270}
50,400,000 9,335,878 300,000 349,144,978 429,182,854
- 12,600,000 {12,600,000)
12,600,000 - (12,600,000 -
(37,800,000) (37,800,000}
- 128,537,425 128,537,425
63,000,000 9,335,878 300,000 447,284,403 519,920,281
- - 15,750,000  {15,750,000) -
15,750,000 - (15,750,000)
- (47,250,000)  {47,250,000)
- - - 106,242,983 104,242,983
78,750,000 9,335,878 300,000 490,527,386 578,913,264

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral porl of these financial statements.

S. M. Mohsin
Chairman

Mujeeb Rashid
Chiet Executive Oflicer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2014

1. Legal status and nature of business

Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited {"the Compony”} was incorporoted in Pakistan and is listed on
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges. It is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of various farm and confectionery products. The registered office of the Company is located
in Lahore.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 These finoncial statements hove been prepared in accordance with opproved accounting
standards os applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accounting Stondards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakiston as are notified under the Companies Ordinonce, 1984,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Wherever the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the requirements of the soid directives
prevail.

2.2 Standords, interprefations and amendments 1o published approved accounting
standards

2.2.71 Amendments and interpretations to published standords effective in currenf year

The following omendments to existing standards hove been published that are-applicable
to the Company’s fincncial statements covering annual pericds, beginning on or cffer the
following dates:

Standards and interpretations Effeclive date
{accounting periods
beginning on or ofter)

Annual improvements 2017; IFRS 1, “First-time Adoption’.

IAS 1, "Financial Stalement Presentation”. 1AS 14, "Property,

Plant and Equipment’. IAS 32, “Financial Instruments:

Presentation’. IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting”.

The application of these amendments have no material

impact on the Company’s financial statemenits. Jonuary 01, 2013

IAS 19 {Amendments), ‘Employee Benefits” eliminate the

corridor approach and calculate finance costs on o net

funding basis. The Company has applied the standard

retrospectively in accordance with the transition provisions

of the standard. The impact of chonge in accounting

policy on the Company's linonciol statements has been

explained in note 4.2.1. January 01, 2013




2.2.2 Standards, amendmenis and inferprefations to existing standards effective in current
year but not applicable/relevant o the Company’s operalians

Effective date
(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

Standards and interpretations

-IFRS 7
-IFRS 10
-IFRS 12
-IFRS 13
- 1AS 32
- 1AS 27
- 1AS 28

January 01, 20713
January 01, 2013
January 01, 2013
January 01, 2013
January 01, 2013
January 01, 2013
January 01, 2013

Financial Instruments: Disclosure
Consolidated Financial Statemenis
Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments: Presentation
Separate Financial Staternents

Investments in Associates and Jeint Ventures

2.2.3 Standords, amendments and interpretalion to existing standards that are not vet

effective

Effective date
{accounting periods
beginning on or after)

Standards and interpretations

-1AS 32,  ‘Finencial Insirurments: Presentalion, on offsetting

financial esset and financicl ligbilities’ Jonuary 01, 2014
-tFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ January 01, 2015
-IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory Delerral Accounts’ January 01, 20146
-IFRS 15, ‘Revenue {rom Contracts with Customers’ January 01, 2017
-IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’ July 01, 2014
-IFRS 10, “Consolidated Finoncial Statements’ Jonuary 01, 2015
-IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements’ January 01, 2015
-IFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ Janvary 01, 2015
-IAS 36 {Amendment], ‘Impairment of Assets’ January 01, 2014
-lAS 39 [Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement’ on novation of derivatives and hedge

accounting’ January 01, 2014
-FRIC 27, 'Levies’ January 01, 2014

-Annual improvements 2012; IFRS 2, 'Share-based Payment’.
IFRS 3, ‘Business Combinatiens’. tFRS 8, ‘Operating

Segments’.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurement’. 1AS 164, ‘Property,

Plant and Equipment’. 1AS 38, ‘Intangible Assets’

Basis of measurement

3.1

July 01, 2014

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for revaluation of certain financial instruments, biological assets and agricultural produce at
fair values as referred to in notes 4.5 and recognition of certain employee retirement benefits
at present value as referred to in note 4.2,

The Company’s significant accounting palicies are stated in nole 4. Not all of these significant
policies require the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgmerts
or estimates. The following is intended to provide an undersianding of the policies the
management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation involved in
their application and their impact on these financial statemenis. Estimates and judgments are
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continually evaluated ond ore based on historical experience, incloding expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve
assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ from these
estimates. The areas involving o higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estimotes are signilicant fo the financial statements are as follows:

a)  Retirement benefits
: The Company uses the valuation perdformed by an independent actuary as the present value
of its refirement benefit obligations. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in
note 4.2.
' b)  Provision for taxation
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by
appellate outhorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the view 1aken by the
income tox department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its
view an items of matericl nature is in accordance with the fow, the amounts are shown as
contingent liabilities.
) Useful lives ond residual values of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis.
Any change in estimates in {uture years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective
items of property, plont and equipment with the corresponding effect on the depreciation
charge and impairment.
d) Biologicol assets
The Company bases its valuation upon yield assessmeni performed by on independent
agricultural expert and computes fair value less estimated point of sales cost to arrive af its
valuation. The fair value less estimated point of sales cost is bused on factors mentioned in
note 4.5.
4. Significant accounting policies
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The significont accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to oll years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Taxation
Current

Pravision of current tax is based on the taxoble income for the year determined in accordonce
with the prevailing low for taxation of income. The charge for current fux is calculated using
prevailing 1ax rates or fax rotes expected to apply to the profit for the year if enocted. The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, fo provision for
tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial skatements ond the cerresponding tax bases used in the computation
of the taxable profit.




Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused fax losses and tax
credits can be uiilized.

Deferred tax is caleulated at the raies that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Delerred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except
in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which
case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

4.2 Employee retirement benefits

The main features of the schemes operated by the Company lor its employees are as
follows:

{a) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees according to the
terms of employment subject to a minimum qualifying peried of service . Annual provision
is made on the basis of actuarial valuation to cover obligations under the scheme for all
employees eligible to gratuily benelits irrespective of the qualifying period.

The latest actuarial valuation for gratuity scheme was carried out as at September 30, 2014.
Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following significant assumptions is used for valuation
of the scheme:

- Discount rate: 13.5 percent per annum (2013: 11.5 percent per annum).

- Expected rate of increase in solary level: 12.5 percent per annum (2013: 10.5 percent per
annumyj.

- Average expected remaining working life time of employees: 9 years (2013: 11 years).

(b}  Accumulating compensated absences

The Company provides accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render
service that increase their entitlement o future compensaled absences.

Provisions are made onnually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated
absences for executives based on actuaria! valuation and are charged to profit.

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at September 30, 2014, Projecied Unit Credit
Method, using the following signilicant assumptions is used for valuation of accumulating
compensaied absences.

- Discount rate: 14 percent per annum {2013: 11.5 percent per annum).

- Expected rate of increase in salary level: 13 percent per annum {2013: 10.5 percent per
annum).

- Average expected remaining working life time of employees: 12 years {2013: 14 years).

Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are recognised immediaiely in accordance
with the provisions of IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

Retirement benefits are payable to sialf on completion of prescribed qualifying period of
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4.2.1 Change in accounting pelicy

During the year, in occordance with IAS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ {revised), the Compony has
changed its accounting policy in respect of recognition of actuarial gains ond losses, past
service costs and expected relurn on plan assets, whereby with elfect from current year, the
Company has recognised acluarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive
income; immediately recognised all past service costs in profit ond loss account; and
replaced interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that is
calculated by applying the discount rate fo the net defined benefit liability/asset. This change
has removed the corridor method and eliminated the ability for the Company 1o recognise
all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan assets in profit or loss, which was
previously allowed under 1AS 19.

The change has been accounted for in accordance with IAS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits” (Revised)
and 1AS 8 - ‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. In accordance
with requirements of IAS 8, the Company has applied the change in accounting policy

retrospectively and IAS 1 - “Presentalion of Financiol Statements” (Revised}, the Company has
presented bolance sheet os at the beginning of the earliest comparative period i.e., October
01, 2012

The eHect of the change in accounting policy on the current and prior period financial
statements have been summarised below:

September 30, September 30, September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Impact on balance sheet
Increase in deferred liabilities 370,685 3,867,061 3,382,270
{Decrease] in unappropricted profit (370,685) (3,867,041} (3,382,270)
September 30, September 30,
20714 2013
Rupees Rupees
Impact on profit and loss account
Decrease in cost of sales (212,739) (24,506)
Decrease in administration expenses {425,476} (15,478}
Decrease in distribution and marketing expenses {212,739) (24,5006)
Increase in profit 850,954 64,490
Impact on other comprehensive income
Remeasurerment of actuoricl losses/gains on

refirement benefit plan {(1,221,639) {3,867,061)

4.3 Property, plont and equipment
4.3.1 Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assels except freehold land are stated ai cost less accumuloted depreciation
and any identified impaoirment loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less ony identified
impairment loss. Cost in relation to certain property, plant and equipment signifies historical
cost and borrowing cost as referred to in note 4,15,




Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged 1o profit on the reducing balance
method so as 1o write ofl the depreciable amount of an asset over its estimated usefu| life
at the annual rates mentioned in note 12 1, after taking into account the impact of their
residuol values, if considered significant.

The assels’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, af each financial year end, and
adjusted if the impact on depreciation is significant. The Company's eslimate of the residual
volue of its operating fixed assets as at Sepiember 30, 2014 has nol required any edjusiment
as ils impad! is considered insignificant.

Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the month in which an
asset is acquired or capitalised while no depreciation is charged for the monih in which the
asset is disposed off.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately fo its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount as mentioned in
note 4.6,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when il is probable that future economic benefils associated with
the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. Al
other repair and maintenance costs are charged to income during the period in which they
are incurred.

Fixed assets received as a grant are debited 1o the properly, plant and equipment account
ut fair value and o corresponding amount credited to the deferred income account in the
balance sheet. Such ilems are thereafter depreciaied as per the policy of the company while a
corresponding amount s transferred from the deferred income io the profit and loss account.

The gain or loss on disposal or refirement of an asset represented by the difference between -
the sale proceeds and the carrying amouni of the asset is recognised as an income or
expense.

4.3.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.4

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure
connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are
carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred io operating fixed assets as
and when these are available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible cssets represent ihe cost of computer software acquired and staled ot cost
less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss. ntungible assets are
amortised using the reducing balance method ot the rate of 20% so as to write off The cost
of an asset over its estimated useful life.

Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an asset s acquired or
capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off,
Amorlization is being charged as mentioned in nofe 13,

An asset’s carrying amount is writen down immediately fo its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount as mentioned in
note 4.6,
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Biciogical assets and agriculture produce

Biological ossets comprise of livestock and trees. These are measured at fair volue less
estimated point-of-sale costs with any resuliant gain/loss being recognised in the profit and
loss account. Fair volue of fivestock is determined on the basis of market prices of fivestock
of similar age, breed and genetic merit. Fair value of frees is determined on the basis of
market prices of similor items in local areas. Point-of-sale costs include all costs that are
necessary to sell the assets, excluding costs necessory to get the assets to the market.

The Company held 107 animals {(2013: 119} including cows, colves, horses and sheep and
estimates to heneficially own 767 (2013: 829) trees of various kinds including mango, jambeoline,
kachnar, ceruse, amla, spikenard, borh and sheesham etc. os on September 30, 2014,

lmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that hove an indefinite usefu! life, for example land, are not subject to depreciation/
amortisation and are tested onnually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation/
amertisalion are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amouni exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and volue in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separalely identifiable cosh flows {cosh-generating units). Non-financial assels
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Leases

4.7.1 Operating leases

4.8

4.9

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are clossified as operating leases. Payments mode under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor} are charged 1o profit on o straight line basis over the
lease term.

Stores, spares and loose tools
Usable slores, spares and loose tools are valued principolly at moving average cost,
while items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. tems in transit are valued at cost

comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Provision is made in the financial statements for slow moving stores based on monagement’s
best estimate.

Stock in trade

Stock of raw matericls, except for those in transit, and finished goods are valued principally
ot the lower of moving average cost and net realizable value.

Cost of raw material signifies average direct material cost.

Finished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing
overheads.

Materials in transit ore stated ot cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
thereon.




Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less costs necessarily to ba incurred in order to moke @ sale.

Provision is made in the financial stalements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade
based on management’s best estimate.

4.10 Financial instruments

4.10.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financio! assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, available lor sale and held 1o maturity. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets ot the time of initial recognition.

a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels af fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as af fair value through profit or loss. A
financial asset is classified as beld for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Assets in this category are classilied as current assets.

b)  Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturiiies greater than twelve months alier the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-curreni assets. Loans and receivables comprise loans, advances, deposits and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balonce sheet.

¢} Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-lor-sale financial assefs are non-derivatives thal are either designated in this
calegory or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assefs unless management intends fo dispose of the investments within twelve monlhs from
the balance sheet date.

d]  Held to maturity

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturily, where management
has the intention and ability to hold Hll maturity are classified as held fo malurity and are
stated af amortised cost,

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a parly to the
confractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases ond sales ol investments are
recognised on frade-date — the date on which the Company commits 1o purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are inilially recognised al fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried af fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at lair value and tronsaction costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried af fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-malurity invesiments
are carried ol amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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4.10.2

4.10.3

411

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financiol assets at fair value
thraugh profit or loss’ category are presented in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the profit ond loss aecount as part of other income when the Company’s right
{o receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of securities dlassified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impoired, the accumulated fair
value adjusiments recognised in equity are included in the profit and loss account as gains
and losses from investment securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the profit and loss account. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the profit and loss account when the
Company’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. Ifthe market for a financial
asset is not active (ond for unlisted securities), the Company measures the investments at
cost less impairment in value, it any.

The Company assesses at coch balance shect dote whether there is objective evidence that
a financiol asset or @ group of finoncial ossets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognised
in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on
cquity instrurnents are not reversed through the profit and loss account. iImpairment fesfing
of trade debis ond other receivables is described in note 4.71.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights o receive cash fiows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transterred substontially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.,

Financial liabilities

Al financia! lichilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as a derecognition of
the originat liability and the recognition of o new liability, and the difference in respecive
canying omounts is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liobilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amount and the Company intends either ta settle on a net basis or 1o realize the assels and
to selle the lighilities simultoneously.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at invoice volue, which approximates
foir value, and subsequenily measured at omortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debis is established when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able o collect all the amount due according
to the original ferms of the receivable. Significant finoncial difficulties of the debtors,



probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial rearganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicalors that the trade debt is impaired. The
provision is recognised in the profit and loss account. When a irade debt is uncollectible, it
is written off against the provision. Subsequeni recoveries of amounis previously writien off
are credited to the profit and loss account,

4.12 Cash and cash equivalents

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet ai cost. For the purpose of cash
How statement cash and cash equivolents comprise cosh in hand, demand deposits, other
short term highly liquid investmenis that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject fo an insignilicant risk of change in value ond finances under mark-up
arrangements. In the balance sheel, finances under mark-up arrangemenis are included in
current liabilities,

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recagnised ot their face value. Incremental costs
directly aftributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equily as a deduction, net of
fax.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised iniiially at fair value, net of fransaction cosis incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently staled at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds {net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account
over the period of ihe borrowings using the effective interest method. Finance costs are
accounted for on an accrual bosis and are reported under accrued finance costs to the
extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Borrowings are classified as current liobilities unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer setilement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the balance sheet daie.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incuired for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset lor its intended use.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

Trade and other payables

Trade and cther payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cosi using the effeciive interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on
translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added 1o the carrying amount of
the respediive ligbilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet dote and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimaie.
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il 4.18 Derivative financial instruments

- Derivatives are inifially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative cantract is entered info
it 1 and are subsequently remeasured ot their fair volue. The method of recognizing the resulling
gain or loss depends on wheiher the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
% if 50, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company does not designate derivatives as
i cash flow hedges.

il 4.19 Revenue recognition
Revenue from soles is recognised on dispatch of goods fo customers.

i Return on deposits is recognised on a fime proportion basis foking into account the amounts
b outsianding and the rates applicable thereon.

izt

4.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation

a)  Functional and preseniction currency

llems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional
i} currency). The financial stofermenis are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional and presentalion currency.

b}  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing af the dotes of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting |
; from the setilement of such transactions and from the franslation ot year-end exchange rates
e of monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated info rupees at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of fransoction or on the date when lair values are determined.

421 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s members is recognised os a liability in the pericd in
which the dividends are approved.

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
5. Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2014 2013 :
s {Number of Shares)
i ;
: I| 1,417,990 1,417,990 Ordinary chares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 14,179,900 14,179,900
i ‘| 44,020 44,020 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully 440,200 440,200
S paid for consideration other than cash
' : 6,412,990 4,837,990 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as tully 64,129,900 48,379,900
o paid bonus shares
N I 7,875,000 6,300,000 78,750,000 63,000,000
ll — n —= _

| 75000 6,300000 _ _



Reserves
Composition of reserves is as follows:

Capital Reserve
- Share premium

Revenue
- General reserve

2014 2013
Note Rupees Rupees
6.7 9,335,878 2,335,878
300,000 300,000
9,635,878

9,635,878

6.1 This reserve can be utilised by the company only for the purposes specified in section 83(2)

of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

Deferred liabilities

These are composed of:
Deferred taxation

Refirement and other benefits
Deferred income

7.1 Deferred toxation

The liability for deferred taxation comprises
temporary differences relating fo:

Acceleraled tax depreciation & amorizalion

Retirement benefits

Other provisions

Unused tax credits

7.2 Retirement and other benefits

Staff gratuity
Accumulating compensaled absences

2014

Note Rupees

7.1 58,163,723
7.2 Q0,762,217
7.3 8,107,117

2013
Rupees

46,825,225
71,595,086

157,033,057 118,420,311
99,543,647 74,032,798
(28,431,264)  (23,429,017)
(7,024,455) (3,778,556)
(5,924,205) -
58,163,723 46,825,225

7.21 78,517,165 63,174,475
12,245,052 8,420,611
90,762,217 71,595,086
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8.

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
{Restated)
7.2.1 Staff gratuity

Liability at start of the year 63,174,475 47,653,965
Charge to profit and foss account 17,118,989 14,315,746
Contributions by the Company (3,555,169) (4,744,580
Remeasurement chargechbie in other

comprehensive income 1,778,870 5,942,324
Liability ot end of the year 78,517,165 63,174,475
The movement in the present value of defined

benelil obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligotion at

the start of the year 63,174,475 47,653,965
Service cost 10,454,722 2,073,385
Interest cost 6,664,267 5,242,381
Benefits paid (3,555,169} {4,744 ,580)
Remeasurements Loss 1,778,870 5,949,324
Present value of defined benelil obligation at

the end of the year 63,174,475

7.3,

78,517,165

The present value of defined benefit abligation and the experience adjustment on obligation
is as follows:

As ot September 30 2074 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Rupees in thousonds )
{Restated) {Resiote__}_{Reslc_fed} {Resia‘@ﬂ

Present value of defined benefit obligation 78,517 63,174
Experience adjustment on obligation 1,779 5,949

A7,654 39978 31,865
(1,200) ?63 258

Deferred income

These represent assets donated fo the Company, recognised and amortised in accordance with
the Company’s policy. The movement in the deferred income in the current period is as follows:

2014 2013
Note Rupees Rupees
Opening balance - -
Additions during the year 8,459,600 -
Amartization during the year (352,483} -
Closing balance 8,107,117
Long term finance
long term finance-secured 8.1 160,000,000 -
Less: Current maturity (10,666,667) -

149,333,333 -




8.1 The long term finance has been obtoined during the peried from Habib Bank Limited. Under
the arrangement, principal amount of Rs. 140 millien is repayable in 15 equal quarerly
inslallments beginning on September 27, 2015, Interest is payable quarterly in arrears at the
rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1 percent per annum,

The loan is secured by first joint pari-passu charge on plant and machinery of the company
having a value of Rs 214 million.

Amount of Rate of Remaining  Interest/Mark-
loan interest/ number of  up payable
outstanding mark-up per  installments
annum
Lender Rupees
Habib Bank Limiled 140,000,000 3 months 15 equal Quuarterly
KIBGOR plus quarerly
1.00% installments
commencing lrom
September 27,
e 2015
Total 160,000,000

Short term running finances - secured

Short term running finances, available from commerciai banks under mark-up arrangements amount
to Rs. 410 million {2013: Rs. 385 million). The rates of mark-up range from 10.43% 10 11.36% per
annum (2013: 10.33% io 1).70%) on the bolance outstanding and is payable quarterly.

Of the aggregate facility of Rs. 120 millien (2013: Rs. 145 millian) for opening letter of credits and
Rs. 22 million {2013: Rs. 22 million] for guarantees, the amount utilised at Septermber 30, 2014
was Rs. 82.561 million (2013: Rs. 130 million) and Rs. 17.20 million (2013: Rs. 17.20 million)
respectively. The guarantees of Rs. 22 million are a sub-facility of the running finance focility
obtained i.e. Rs. 410 million.

The aggregate short term facilities are secured by a hypothecation of stores and spares, stock in
trade, trade debts and a charge on the present and fuiure fixed assets of the company.

2014 2013
Note Rupees Rupees
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Trade creditors 73,714,194 86,929,927
Accrued liabilities 28,289,403 39,832,002
Advarnces from customers 20,670,837 13,182,250
Interest free deposils repayable on demand 110,000 110,000
Due to related porties 10.1 176,602 -
Sales tax payable 11,376,272 15,023,587
Workers’ profit participation fund 10.2 6,365,492 9,835,407
Workers’ welfare fund 5,514,768 7,035,052
Uncloimed dividends 2,742,572 1,447,387
Provision for duties payable 9,973,546 9,973,566
(Oihers 5,719,386 5,004,917
164,653,092 188,394,095
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2014 2013

MNote Rupees Rupees
10.1 Due to reloted parties
Lessee 176,602
176,602

These relate to normal business of the campany
ond ore interest free.

: | 10.1.2 Ageing of related party balance

One to six months 174,607 -

Total 176,602 -

10.2 Workers’ profit participation fund

L. Opening balance 9,835,407 8,015,261
.} Pravision for the year 24 6,365,492 9,835,407
Interest for the year 26 112,296 217,432
16,313,195 18,068,100
Less: Payments mode during the year (9,947,703} (8,232,693
Closing balance 6,365,492 9,835,407

11. Confingencies and commitments

11.1 Conlingencies

The Company haos issued o guarantee in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited on
account of payment of dues ogainst gas consumption amounting to Rs. 17.2 million {2013:
Rs. 17.2 million).

The Campany has issued post dated chegues amounting to Rs. 89 million (2013: Rs. 89
million) to Collector of Customs Lahore Dry Port on account of taxes ond duty which might
become payable against Duty and Tax Remission on Export under SRO # 450 (1)/2001
dated June 30, 2001 under Customs Rules 2001,

11.2 Commitmenis

Letters of credit including capital expenditure are Rs. 28.6 million (2013: Rs 130.Q million).
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2014 2013

Note Rupees Rupees
12, Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 12,1 641,698,700 386,610,321
Capital work-in-pregress 12.2 43,099,811 6,555,860

684,798,317 393,166,181

12.1 Property, plant and equipment

Land Buitdings
Plan! ang Furnilure Eleclic Compular
Cafreshold  On leosehotd  machinery Wehiclas and Instollalions  Hordware Tatal
Fraehold lond lang Fistings
........................................................ [RU BB S) e s om e e e cmm e r e ety

Nat carrying volue bosis
Yeor anded Sepramber 30, 2014
Opening nel book value {NBY) 15,547 63,054,282 723018 FIDLATOZT N F6L562 1,546,564 17,271,878 1,987,245 386,610,321
Addicns (at cost) - 12,158,907 2A38,959 P6%,165.757 153724869 1118047 5860077 352,627 309,454,783
Disposals / Write off fat NBY} - 1838 - - [4,675.594) © (26681} (30,625 (4.734,038)
Adjusimenis - - - - - . - - .
Daprecistion charge - BA3L.676)  NATEIE [A24A71,935) (2833, 147} [443.200) {5,159,108] {435 487 {47,642 386}
Clusing net boak volue [MNEBY) 15,547 68,332,675 A%42,160 514 540,944 29825390 221411 17944113 1,874,460 641,498,700
Gioss corrying value hosis
As ol Seplernber 30, 2014
Cox 15,547 120,752,089 8354476 BIZ108005  IPF13.653 5491741 5137609 8410004 |.0¢6,452,630
Aceumulated depreciation - 2419414 (1412,318) (317,597,061 [%.B88.263) (3,472,350) {313,429 951 (6,535 543) {424,754,930)
Ml book walue (NBY) 15,547 &5,332,475 6,942,160 5314.540,%44  29.0H25 390 21,411 17944113 1,874,480 441,698,700
Depreciation rate % per aamum - L8] 20 o 20 it 20.33.33 20
Mel coerying volwe basis
Year ended September 30, 20175
Chpenmng net bagk volue (M) 15,547 25514917 PEOZST ZB4ENT Y 20074000 1081,443 16550013 1,925,582 351,429,424
Addilions fal cost) - 41,433,718 2917518 17,027,068  5987,770 748981 6,209,257 S18,26% 74,922,575
Disposals 7 Wile off for NBY) . - (906,734) - {1.506,448) . 157 904 (1,500  {2.472,584)
Adjustments . - - - - - - - -
Deprecialion charge . [3.892.345) [ZBA20) [23.BB7112) [14673.363 (261.Ba2) (5, 830,288) (4544060 [37.269,3%4)
Clesing net ook walue (MEV) 15,547 63,054,202 LFA0e ZTBO470FF 21,941 987 1,546,564 17.371,08 1,987,945 3BA 410,421
Gross cafrying value bosis
As at September 30, 2013
Cost ¥5,547 108,717,802 91T 517 BA2YLINY 33210915 4,573,714 45549 572 8,105,563 764,084 883
Accumulated depreciation - [45.641,520) 1174,500) (284,925, 128) (11,248,953) 13,025,150 {28,297,694) (6,117,615 {379,474.562)
Met boak value {MEY} 153,547 43,086,282 2723004 TrROATI7 0 TV HELBED V548,584 17,271,878 1,207,945 386,610,321
Deprecialion rale % per annum - 1) 20 14 20 20 20-33.33 20

12.1.1 The cost of fully deprecialed assets which are still in use as af September 30, 2014 s Rs.
23.59 million (2013: Rs. 23.41 million).

12.1.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been altocated as follows:

2014 2013

Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 21 40,771,424 28,047,474
Adminisiration expenses 22 2,921,211 1,894,789
Distribution und marketing expenses 23 5,949,729 7,327,131

49,642,366 37,269,396




12.1.3 Disposal of operating fixed ossets

Detail of operating fixed assets sold during the yeor is as follows:

forticubars of ossels Sold lo/Transkerred to

Yehicles Employees
M. Shahzad Ahraod
fdr. Raemzan Bhatli
M. Sunoid Javed

Crutsiders

i, Shabbir Hussain

Mr. Lingal Ali

rar. Sokoor Amjed Bojwo

Otler assets with book value less than Rs, 50,000

Detait of nperating fixed assets sold during the yeor is ot Tkl s

Particulars of assels Sold 1o/Transferred to

Wahiclas
Outsiders
br. Noeem Igbol
Mr. Murtozo Khan
Phacto Ausa Bervice
lsmil Kargamo Sore

On leasehold land
Zeneral Public
Wirite off

Other assets wilh book value less thon Rs. 50,000

58

7,572,645 5,100,061

2,472,584

2,824,232

2014
Accumuiated Book Sale Mode of
Cost depreciotion value proceeds disposuls
----------------------- Rupees S
537,490 202,441 335,049 252,568 Compeny policy
1,323,000 446,668 076,332 681,372 Company policy
B44, 340 392,374 453,944 273,300 Campany policy
494 830 246,121 248,709 472,786 Magatiotion
3,341,582 1,723,139 1,568,443 4,040,000 MNegotiation
822,900 247,953 474,947 796,000 Auction
1,709,895 233,300 776,594 3,076,300
7,096,037 4,361,998 4,734,038 9592326
2013
’ Accomulated Book Sole Mode of
Cos! deprecialion value proceeds disposals
eimemmeemcanem- RUPERS -om-mooaoermmmn oo
1,355,780 720,134 435,446 1,532,000 Megatiation
504,000 184,208 319,792 422,222 MNegaliafion
314,259 199,269 117,700 833,300 Megotinlion
1,053,000 19 497 433,308 120,000 tHegediation
859,125 441,878 427,247 25,000 Megotiolion
3,297,722 2,818,235 479 487
176.049 114,643 59,404 41,500
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MNote
12.2 Copital work-in-progress

Civil Works
Plant and machinery

Intangible Asseis
Netl carrying value basis

Year ended September 30, 2014
Cpening net book value {NBY)
Additions at cast

Daletions ai NBY

Amortisation charge

Closing net book value (NBY)
Gross carrying value basis
Cost

Accumulated amortization

Net book value (NBV)

Amortization rate % per annum

13.1 The amortizaticn charge for the year hos been
allocated as follows:

Cosl of sales 21

Administration expenses 22
Distribution and marketing expenses 23

Biological assets

Livestock
Trees

Stores, spares and loose tools

General stores
Engineering stores

Less: Provision for obsolete iterns
- Engineering store 152

2014 2013

Rupees Rupees
38,589,069 1,380,444
4,510,542 5,175,416
43,099,611 6,555,860
1,077,596 1,285,370
1,606,150 58,000
{436,610) {265,774)
2,247,136 1,077,596
6,832,827 57276,677
(4,585,691} (4,149,081)
2,247,136 1,077,596
20 20
67,948 84,935
147,571 180,839
221,091 -
436,610 265,774
7,449,667 7,536,333
1,891,667 2,036,667
9,341,334 9,573,000
5,386,724 4,097,770
20,332,997 17,191,961
25,719,921 21,289,731
(6,262,883) (6,262,883}
19,457,038 15,026,848

15.1 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure bul are not

distinguishable.
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15.2 Provision for obsolete items - Engineering store

Opening balance
Add: Provision for the year

Closing balance
Stock in trade
Raw materials [including in fransit Rs. 16.65 million
(2013: Rs. 5.57 million)]
Packing moterials {including in transit Rs. 42.56 million
(2013: Rs. 19.88 million)]
Finished goods

Less: Provision for obsolete items

- Row material

14.1 Provision for obsolete items - Row material

Opening balance
Add: Provision for obsolete items

Closing balance
Trade debis

Considered good
Considered doubthul

Less: Provision for doubtful debis

17.1 Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance
Add: Provision for the year

Less: Bad debts written off against provision

Closing bolonce

20714 2013

Note Rupees Rupees
6,262,883 4,885,025
21 - 1,377,858
6,262,883 46,262,883
144,920,021 112,503,512
134,589,411 144,210,553
132,295,347 74,579,020
411,804,779 333,293,085
16.1 (6,048,224) (5,921,595)
405,756,555 327,371,490
5,971,595 7,734,633
21 126,629 (1,813,038}
4,048,224 5,921,595
26,601,581 56,548,807
2,008,225 473,330
©8,60%,806 57,022137
171 (2,008,225} (473,330}
26,601,581 56,548,807
473,330 2,442,918
23 1,534,895 (323,561)
2,008,225 2,119,357
- (1,646,027}

2,008,225

473,330




2014 2013 i

Mote Rupees Rupees ¥
18.  Advances, deposits, prepayments and o
other receivables "
Advances - considered good
- To employees 18.1 2,692,186 2,945,323
- To suppliers 3,836,955 2,775,538
Prepayments 1,929,125 524,502
Leiters of credit - margins, deposits, opening charges, elc. 2,947 992 1,111,135
Claims recoverable from the government
- Income tax refundable 134,880,713 74,118,623
- Sales tax - -
Due from relaoted parties 182 - 136,748
Other receivables 799,383 2,396,206

147,086,354 84,008,075

18.1 The moximum oggregate amount at the end of any month during the year due from the
Chief Executive is Rs. 113,660, (2013: Rs. 21,483) and Directors Rs. 782,102 {2013 Rs.
280,775). No amounts are due at the year end (2013: Nii).

20714 2013
Rupees Rupees
18.2 Due from related parties
Anjurnan-e-Khuddam-e-Rasoal Allah - 2,450
Lessee - 134,298
- 136,748
These relote to normal business of the company and are interest free.

18.3 Ageing of related party balance

One to six months - 134,748

Totel - 136,748

19.  Cash and bank balances

Balances af banks on current accounts 30,810,855 35,987,261
Special account related to dividend payable 2,742,572 1,467,387
Cash in hand 760,604 346,029

34,314,031 37,800,677
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20.

21.

Sales

Gross sales
- Local

Less: Sales refurns

Rebates
Trade promotion

Add: - Export sales

2014 2013

Note Rupees Rupees
2,005,832,398 2,237,588,424
42,965,840 56,653,491
230,257,241 254,939,611
22,093,618 30,326,637
295,316,699 341,919,739
234,610,731 188,592,852

1,945,126,430

2,084,261,537

Local sales are exclusive of sales tax of Rs. 328 million {2013: Rs. 347 103 million).

Cost of sales

Raw and packing material consumed

Sclaries, woges and other benefits

Furnace oil consumed

Freight and ociroi

Travelling and vehicle running

Repeirs and maintenance

Power, Water and Gaos

Insurance

Rent, rates and toxes

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Pravision for/{Reversal of provision) of obsolete stock
Provision for cbsolete stores and spares

Other expenses

Cost of goods manufactured

Opening finished goods
Closing finished goods

2074

Note Rupees

1,152,710,874
144,215,653
41,445,651
315,412
3,329,425
26,208,875
54,925,207
4,389,372
1,791,967
40,771,426
67,948
126,629

211

12.7
13.1
16.1
15.2 -
11,194,872

2013
Rupees
(Restated)

1,214,502,613
128,160,395
45,900,267
117,118
2,269,333
24,281,635
62,840,287
3,373,272
1,737,167
28,047,476
84,935
(1,813,038}
1,377,858
23,223,208

1,481,493,31

1,534,109,526

74,579,020 87,265109
(132,295,347) (74,579,020)
(57,716,327) 12,686,089

1,546,795,615

1,423,776,984




21.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include 1he following in respect of grotuity:

4 2014 2013

‘ Rupees Rupees
Current service cost 3,535,488 3,268,656
Interest cost for the year 2,387,441 1,992,105

5,922,929 5,260,761

- - I

In addition 1o the above, Rs. 3.624 million {2013: Rs. 2.831 million) have been charged in
respect of the Company’s contribution towards staff compensated absences.

i 2014 2013
il Note Rupees Rupees
i {Restated)
‘-_f“ 22.  Adminislration expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits 221 54,497,622 47,143,358
i Travelling and vehicle running 4,655,008 4,064,697
i Entertainment . 1,094,927 969,246
- Repairs and maintenance 1,443,701 2,063,955
2 lnsurance 627,820 580,283
E ¥ Rent, rates and faxes 3,860,309 3,104,382
Power, water and gas 2,511,808 2,132,995
Printing and stationery 1,561,097 1,188,333
Postage and telephone expenses 2,106,506 1,885,717
Professional services 223 5,612,023 5,719,281
Depreciotion on properly, plant and equipment 12.1 2,921,211 1,894,789
Amortization of intangible assets 13.1 147,571 180,839
Dairy expenses 9,809,556 7,850,097
Cther expenses 4,303,808 4,074,462
95,153,037 82,852,434
22.1 Salaries, wages and other benefiis include the following in respect of gratuity:
2014 2013
. ¥ Rupees Rupees
k3 {Restated)
Current service cosi 2,981,060 2,536,073
Interest cost for the year 1,574,258 1,258,171
4,555,318 3,794,244

in addiiion fo the above, Rs. 0.744 million (2013: Rs. 0.736 million) have been charged in
respect of the Company’s contribution towards staff compensated absences.
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23.

22.2 Number of employees

2014
Asal 30  Average during  As at 30
September the year September
Executives 60 57 53
Non- Executives 294 293 291

22.3 Professional services

2013
Average during

the year

54
295

The charges Tor professional services include the following in respect of auditors” services

for:

Statutary audit

Half yearly review

Workers' profit participation fund’s audit
ond sundry services

Out of pocket expenses

Distribution and marketing expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Travelling and vehicle running
Entertainment

Freight expenses

Export expenses

Advertisement

Trade promotion expenses

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Power, Water and Gas

Printing and stationery

Postage and telephone
Depreciation on property, plant and egquipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Service charges to distributors
Provision for doubtful debts

Other expenses

23.1 Salories, wages and other benefits include the
following in respect of gratuity:

Current service cost
Interest cost for the year

Note

231

2014 2013

Rupees Rupees
725,000 650,000
400,000 275,000
145,000 119,000
115,158 163,110
1,385,158 1,207,110
63,977,590 49,495,490
11,672,018 13,334,906
393,739 351,500
58,766,218 67,957,858
11,522,294 9,736,390
52,992,902 77,084,208
42,137,641 .
100,967 92,460
835,395 {162,509)
621,649 443,340
401,095 414,219
275,670 189,982
1,673,337 1,462,878
5,949,729 7,327,131
221,091 -
5,631,678 2,591,704
1,534,895 (323,561}
17,127,482 18,434,989
275,836,084 248,431,685
3,938,174 3,268,656
2,702,568 1,992,105
6,640,742 5,260,761

In addition to the above, Rs. 1.378 million {2013: Rs. 1.263 million} have been charged in

respect of the Company’s contribution towards statt compensated absences.

FE
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24.

25.

25,

27.

Other expenses

Workers' profit paricipation fund

Workers” welfare fund

Donations - Anjuman-e-Khuddam-e-Rascol Allah,
Shergarh, District Okara

Conations - Others

Exchange loss

Other income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale and revaluation of live stock
Prolit or sale and revaluation of trees
Exchange gain

Scrap sales _
Amorlization of deferred income

Others

Finance cost

interest and mark-up on

- Short term running finances-secured
- Long term loan

- Workers” profit participotion fund
Bank and cther charges

Pravision for faxation
Current tax

- Current year
- Prior year

Deferred tax

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees

6,365,492 @,835,407
1,467,705 3,385,771
1,000,000 1,004,000
220,000 -
344,644 -
9,397,843 14,221,178
4,858,288 351,638
213,034 1,524,766
244,560 74,767
- 2,271,072
8,808,597 7,572,442
352,483 -
1,927,834 739,578
17,104,796 12,534,243
28,891,341 13,897,146
5,974,707 -
112,294 217,432
3,612,270 3,443,082
38,590,614 17,557,640
- 52,961,354

116,293 (3,796,977)

116,293 49,164,377

11,895,729 5,368,365
54,532,742

12,012,022
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28.

27.1 Tox charge reconciliation

Numericol reconciliafion between the average effective tax rate and the opplicoble tox rate.

2074 2013

% %
Applicable tax rate 33.00 34.00
Tax effect of amounts that are:
- Exempt for lax purposes {0.32) {0.30)
Tax credits (21.86) (0.80)
Tax effect under presumptive tax regime and others {0.87) (1.70}
EHect of change in prior tax year 0.10 (2.00)

(22.95) {4.80)
Average effective tax rate charged to profit

and loss account 10.05 29.20

Transactions with related parties

The related parfies comprise associated underiokings and key management personnel. The company
in the normal course of business corries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due
from and fo related parties ore shown under receivobles and payables ond remuneration of the key
management personnel is disclosed in note 29. Other significant transactions with related parties
are as follows:

2014 2013
Description Rupees Rupees
Purchose of goods 7,844,297 5,013,304
Donations 1,000,000 1,000,000
Rent 2,151,300 1,848,000

10,995,592 7,858,304

All transactions with related parties hove been carried out on mutually agreed terms ond conditions.




29. Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

29.1 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration,
including certain benetits, to the Chief Executive, directors and executives of the Company is

as follows:
Chief Exacutive Directors Executive
2014 2013 2014 2003 2014 2003
iNon Non
Executive Executive Executive Executive
Directors  Directors Directars  Directors
Rupees
Managerial remuneratian 13,545,438 10,852,350 - 2,482,764 - 2,482,784 23,752,753 13,882,425
Retirement benefits 3,757,814 2,665,322 - - - - 13,970,056 9,224,386
House rent allowance 4,845,990 3,877,588 - 1,117,238 - 1,117,236 10,685,118 72,119,250
Litilitigs 1,202,327 861,688 . 368,206 - 492,093 2,373,681 2.693,28)
Club expenses 28,675 17,624 - 130,431 - 219,923 11,209
Banus . - - 713,794 - 764,037 6,086,621 7,395,133
23,401,244 18,274,572 . 4,810,931 - 5,076,053 556,880,118 40,315,155
Nuymber of persons [ 1 & i & 1 27 1a

The Compony also provides the Chief Executive, direciors and certain emplayees with free use of
Company maintained cars.

The Chief Executive and employees are entitled to reimbursement of medical expenses up to an
amount equal to three basic salaries.

29.2 Remuneraiion to other directors

Aggregale amount charged in the financial staiements for the year for fee to 8 directors
{2013: 8 directors) is Rs. 160,000 {2013: Rs. 160,000},

30. Capacity and production

The capacity of the plant is not determinable as il is a multi product plant capable of producing
several interchangeable products.

Actual production

2014 2013
In cartons
Groceries 1,508,817 1,220,396
Confectioneries 525,511 713,342

%MM!@?M 2ot




68

31.

32.

33.

Note
Cash generaled from operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Amortization of deferred income
Amortization on inlangibles

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Provision for retirement benefils

Profit on revaluation of biological assets
Provision for doubttul debts - trade
Pravision for obsolete stock

Stock in trade written off

Provision for obsolete stores and spares
Finarce cost

Profit before working copital changes
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes

- {Increase}/Decrease in stores, spares and loose tools

- {Increase)/Decrease in stock in trode

- {Increase)/Decrease in trade debis

- {Increase)/Decreose in advances, deposits, prepoyments

ond other receivables
- {Decrease)/increase in creditors, acerued ond other liabiities

Cash generated from operations

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 19
Short term running finances-secured

Earnings per share

33.1 Basic earnings per share

Ne! profit for the year Rupees
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Number
Basic earnings per share Rupees

33.2 Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company os the Company

has no such commitments.

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
119,476,644 186,872,738
49,642,366 37,269,396

(352,483) -
436,610 265,774
{4,858,288) (351,638)
24,106,143 19,210,342
(1,157,594) (1,599,533
1,534,895 {323,561)
126,629 {1,813,038)
797,623 12,504,280

- 1,377,858

38,590,614 17,557,660
228,343,159 270,970,278
(4,430,190) (3,913,273)
(79,309,317} 4,469,876
(41,587,669) 3,591,184
(2,316,189 1,498,232
{25,016,188) 52,392,128
{152,659,553) 58,038,147
75,683,606 329,008,425
34,314,031 37,800,677
(331,973,482} (97,102,844)
(297.659,451) {59,302,167}
107,464,622 132,404,486
7,875,000 7,875,000
13.65 16.87

R




34.  Financial risk management

341 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to o variety of financial risks: market risk {including

currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk)
Company’s overall risk management programme focuse

. credit risk and liquidity risk. The
s on the unprediciability of financial

markets and seeks fo minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Direciors (the Board). The Board provides

principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as

. foreign exchange risk, interest rale risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. Al
freasury refated transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

' {a)  Market risk
; (i)  Corrency risk
. Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
k. Hluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from
- future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in
§ foreign currencies.
:;: The Company is exposed ta currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily

with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange
risk exposure is restricied to the amounts receivable/payoble from/to the foreign entities. The
Company’s exposure 1o currency risk at the reporting date is as foliows:

2014 2013
Trade debts - USD 505,496 208,755
The following significani exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupees per USD
v Average rote 101.69 105,14
Reporting daote rate 102.70 105.30

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had lluctuated by 5% against the USD with all
other variables held constant, the impact on profit before faxation for the year would have
been Rs, 2,598,249 {2013: Rs. 1,100,139} higher/lower, mainky as a result of exchange
gains/losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financicl inslruments. Currency
risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on o symmeiric basis.

(i} Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fingncial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices [other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those chonges are caused by factors specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments fraded in the market. The Company is not exposed 1o equity price risk since there
are no investments in equity securities. The Company is also nof exposed to commodity price
risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commaodity suppliers.
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(iif)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair volue or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significont long term interest bearing assets. The Company’s interest
rate risk arises from long term and short term borrowings. Borrowings obioined at variable
rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company s interest beoring finoncial
instruments was:

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
Floating rate instruments
Financial liabitities
Long Term Finances (160,000,000) -
Short term running finances-secured (331,973,482) (97,102,844)
Net exposure (491,973,482 (97,102,844)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities ot fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, o change in inferest rate at the balance sheet date would
not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

i interest rates on long term finances and short term running finance, ot the year end date,
fluctuate by 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit before foxation for
the year would have been Rs. 4.92 million (2013: Rs. 0.97 million} higher/lower, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one parly fo a financial instrument will cause a finoncial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge on obligation. Credit risk arises from amounts
receivable from customers of the Company, deposits with banks and other receivables.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying emaunt of financial assefs represents the moximum credii exposure. The
maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporing date was as follows:

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 28,609,806 57,022,137
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables 6,439,561 46,589,412
Cash and bank balances 33,553,427 37,454,648

138,602,794 101,066,197
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The age of trade receivables and related impairment loss at balance sheet date is as follows:

20714 2013
Rupees Rupeeas
The age of trade receivables
Past due but not impaired
- Not past due 34,246,615 42,930,818
- Past due 0 - 180 days 60,027,985 13,738,096
- Past due 181 - 345 days 2,326,981 237,154
- Over 3465 days 2,008,225 116,069

98,609,806 57,022,137

Credit quality of major financial assets

The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credis ratings it avalable) or 1o histarical information
about counterpady default rate:

Rating Rating
Shord term  Long term Agency 2014 2013
(Rupees) {Rupees)
National Bank of Pakistan AT+ ABA JCRVIS 1,133,410 303,420
MCB Barnk Limited Al+ AAA PACRA, 837,106 836,106
Habib Bank Lirmited A+ AAA JCRVIS 31,582,911 36,315,122

33,553,427 37,454,448

Due fo the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and
after giving due consideration 1o their strong financial standing, management does nof
expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations 1o the Company.
Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amounl of commitied credit facilities. At September 30, 2014,
the Company had Rs. 410 million availoble borrowing limits from financial institutions and
Rs. 34.31 million cash and bank balances.
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The {following are the contractual maturities of financiol liabiliies as of September 30, 2014:

Carrying Lass than One to five  More than
amaowunt one year years five vears
Rupees

Trade and other payables 141,396,560 141,396,560
Accrued finance cost 2,004,225 2,004,225

150,400,785 150,400,785 - -

The following are the centractual maturities of financial liabilities as at September 30,
2013:
Carrying Less than One to five  More than
amount one year years five vears
Rupees

Trade and other payables 156,500,049 156,500,049
Accrued finonce cost 1,485,143 1,485,143

157,785,192 157,985,192

34.2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at

each reporting date.

Loans and receivables

2014 2013
Rupees Rupees
34.3 Financial instruments by categories
Assets as per balance sheet
Long term loons and deposits - -
Trade debts 98,609,806 57,022,137
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables 6,439,561 6,589,412
Cash and bank balances 33,553,427 37,454,648

138,602,794 101,066,197

Financial ligbilities ot
amortised cost

2014 2013

. Rupees Rupees ;
¢ Liabilities as per balance sheet
I ¥
|? Trade and other payobles 141,396,560 156,500,049
Accrued finance cost 2,004,225 1,485,143
i

150,400,785 157,985,192 {
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34.4 Caopital risk management

1 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability
. to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
; other stakeholders and 1o maintain an optimal copital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of

i

2 dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and

the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio,

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings including current and non-current borrowings, as disclosed in note 8, less cash
and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 32. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as

shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio as af Septermber 30, 2014 and
Septermber 30, 2013 is as follows:

] 2014 2013
MNote Rupees Rupees
: Long term finance 8 140,000,000
Short term borrowings net of cash ot bank _
and in hand 32 (297,659,451) (59,302,167}
Net debt 457,659,451 59,302,167
E | Total equity 578,913,264 519,920,281
| Total capital 1,036,572,715 579,222,448
Gearing ratio Percentage 44% 10%

35.  Date of authorisation

These financial statemnents were authorised for issue on January 5, 2015 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

34. Events aber the balance sheet date

The Board of Directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended Septernber 30, 2014 of
Rs. 5 {2013: Rs. 7.5] per share, amounting to Rs. 39,375,000 {2013: Rs. 47,250,000 and bonus
shares of Nil {2013: 25%) at their meeting held on January 5, 2015 for approval of the members
at the Annual General Meeting to be held on January 31, 2015. These financial statements do
not reflect this dividend payable.

37. Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purposes of
comparison. However, no significant reclassifications have been made except for restatement
made in accordance with IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’ (Revised).

S. M. Mohsin Mujeeb Rashid
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Proxy Form

Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited
82" Annual General Meeting

|/We

of

being a member of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited, hereby appoint

(Name}

of

or failing him/her

"~ (Name)

of

another member of the Company, as my/our proxy in my/our ahsence to aftend and vote for me/us and
on my/our behalf ai the 82" Annual General Meeting of the Company fo be held on January 31, 2015
ot the Registered Office of the Company located at 40-A, Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg ¥, Lahore.

Signed this day of 2015

Please offix
FEvenue

stamp

Please quote folio number Signature of Member

IMPORTANT:
This instrument, appointing a proxy, duly completed, must be received af the Registered Office of the

Company located at 40-A, Zatar Ali Road, Gulberg V, Lahore not later than 48 hours before the scheduled
time of the meeting.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
I Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited

40-A, Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg V.

Lahore.
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INCORPORATED IN 1933

Citrus fruit growers and makers of premium quality Squashes, Syrups, Jam, Jellies,
Marmalade, Tomato Ketchup, Sauces, Pickles, Vinegars, Canned Foods, Pastes &
Pulps, Sugar Confectioneries, Chocolate and Sugar-free products.

Factory & Farms: | Head Office:
Mitchell's Fruit Farms, Ltd. | 40-A, Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg V,
Renala Khurd, District Okara, Pakistan | Lahore, Pakistan
P: (+92) (44) 2622908, 263530/-8 P: (+92) (42) 35872392-96,
N F: (+92) (44) 2621416 F(+92) (42) 35872398
) E: rnk@mitchells.com.pk | E: ho@mitchells.com.pk

ﬂ /Mitchel’s Natural-Goodness.
Bl /mitcheli's Sweet indufgence’
“www.mitchells.comipk’




